



NIRB File No.: 02MC117
NWB File No. 1AR-NANA0914

June 10, 2013

Johan Skoglund
Group Environment Manager, Americas
Nyrstar
2840 – 650 West Georgia Street
P.O. Box #11552
Vancouver, BC V6B 4N8

Sent via email: johan.skoglund@nyrstar.com

Re: Queries Regarding Nunavut Impact Review Board (NIRB) Screening Requirements Associated with Renewal of Water Licence 1AR-NANA0914

Dear Johan Skoglund:

On May 30, 2013 the Nunavut Impact Review Board (NIRB or Board) received correspondence from Nyrstar Canada (Holdings) Ltd., the parent company of the current Type “A” Water Licensee, CanZinco (the Proponent or Applicant) under Water Licence 1AR-NANA0914 issued by the Nunavut Water Board (NWB). In your correspondence you indicated that the Proponent is working on the renewal application for the Water Licence and posed the following specific questions regarding the timing and requirements that may be associated with the NIRB’s screening of the renewal application:

- Whether all activities for Nyrstar’s proposed undertaking are subject to screening or just those which may vary from those previously screened in 2008;
- Must the NIRB wait until a water licence application is forwarded to it from the NWB before commencing the screening;
- If Nyrstar is able to work within the pre-application stage, will a draft water licence application be required? Can NIRB’s information requirements for project screening be satisfied through means other than a water licence application; and
- Recognizing the timelines for consideration of a water licence renewal and that the current licence will expire on March 31, 2014, what is the NIRB’s estimate of time that it would likely take to conduct the project screening, and any suggestions for expediting the screening process.

At the outset, please note that the NIRB's activities in respect of previously screened activities are guided by Article 12, Section 12.4.3 of the Nunavut Land Claims Agreement (NLCA), which states as follows:

12.4.3 Any application for a component or activity of a project proposal that has been permitted to proceed in accordance with these provisions shall be exempt from the requirement for screening by NIRB unless:

- (a) such component or activity was not part of the original proposal,; or*
- (b) its inclusion would significantly modify the project.*

Further, as described by the NIRB in the current Draft Technical Guide for Project Proponents, (NIRB April 2013)¹:

For activities and components included in project proposals that have previously been screened by the NIRB if the application involves the following, the application is exempt from screening and should not to be referred by the Authorizing Agency to the NIRB for screening:

- a. the same project activities as proposed in the original project proposal previously screened by the NIRB;*
- b. the activities will be taking place in the same area as specified in the original project proposal previously screened by the NIRB;*
- c. there have been no substantial changes to the environment or cumulative effects in the area of the project activities since the project proposal was screened by the NIRB;*
- d. no new or updated approved Land Use Plans have become applicable to the area of the project activities since the original project proposal was screened by the NIRB; and*
- e. there are no significant changes to the components, activities or project proposed in the application from those included in the original project proposal previously screened by the NIRB.*

Please be advised that the original CanZinco Limited "Closure and Reclamation Plan for the Nanisivik Mine" project proposal (NIRB File No.: 02MC117) was received by the NIRB from the NWB on March 1, 2002 and was screened by the Board in accordance with Part 4, Article 12 of the Nunavut Land Claims Agreement (NLCA). On October 7, 2002 the NIRB issued a 12.4.4(a) screening decision to the Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern Development and the NWB which indicated that the proposed project could proceed subject to the NIRB's recommended project-specific terms and conditions. Further, following a review of a water licence renewal application with the NWB associated with this project, on September 3, 2008 the

¹ Available online from the NIRB public registry at the following location:
<http://ftp.nirb.ca/04-GUIDES/03-NEW%20GUIDES/04-DRAFT%20TECHNICAL%20GUIDES/>

NIRB confirmed that the application was exempt from the requirement for further screening pursuant to Section 12.4.3 of the NLCA and the activities therein remained subject to the terms and conditions recommended in the original October 7, 2002 Screening Decision Report.

The original NIRB Screening Decision Report (File No. 02MC117) and all related file information are available from the NIRB's online public registry at the following location:

<http://ftp.nirb.ca/01-SCREENINGS/COMPLETED%20SCREENINGS/2002-TO%20BE%20COMPLETED/02MC117-CanZinco%20Limited-Nanisivik/>.

With this background, the NIRB has responded to your specific questions in the text below. Firstly, as noted under Article 12 section 12.4.3 of the NLCA only those components or activities of the renewal application that were not previously part of the project proposal screened in 2002 or that significantly modify the project from the project proposal that was previously screened in 2002 would be subject to screening by the NIRB. Therefore, components or activities included in the renewal application that were included in the scope of the project proposal screened in 2002 would not be rescreened by the NIRB.

With respect to your queries regarding whether the NIRB can conduct a type of "pre-application" determination of whether the project proposal as put forward in the renewal application is exempt from screening or whether the NIRB must wait to have the renewal application referred for screening from the NWB, the NIRB points out that as part of the integrated environmental assessment and licensing process established under the NLCA, the NIRB does not have jurisdiction to make "pre-application" determinations. In the absence of the full description of components and activities included in the renewal application, including items such as proposed amendments to the components and activities under the existing licence proposed to be included under the renewed licence, the NWB and the NIRB cannot make an assessment as to whether the conditions of Article 12, section 12.4.3 of the NLCA are met and the scope of components and activities proposed in the renewal application is within the scope of what was screened in 2002.

Consequently, until such time as the Applicant submits the fully developed renewal application to the NWB and the NWB refers the renewal application to the NIRB, the NIRB cannot predetermine the extent to which the exemption in Article 12, section 12.4.3 of the NLCA may apply. The NIRB wishes to highlight that at the time the NWB receives the renewal application, the NWB could determine that the conditions in section 12.4.3 of the NLCA are satisfied with respect to all activities in the renewal application, and would then not be required to forward the renewal application to the NIRB for screening. Alternatively upon receipt of the renewal application the NWB may wish to consult with the NIRB regarding the extent to which the components and activities proposed in the renewal application are exempt from screening, in which case the NWB would refer the application to the NIRB for its determination.

With respect to your question regarding timing if a NIRB screening is required, as set out in Article 12, section 12.4.5 of the NLCA, the NIRB screening process typically takes up to 45 days from the receipt of the project proposal for screening to the time when the NIRB issues a screening decision to the Minister. In terms of the NIRB process and timing after a screening decision is issued in respect of a project proposal, this is dependent on the outcome of the Board's screening decision to the Minister and which of the four options under Article 12, section 12.4.4 of the NLCA that is recommended by the NIRB.

Although the NIRB encourages potential Proponents to seek the direction and advice of the NIRB and the NWB throughout the process, for the reasons outlined above, until such time as the water licence renewal application is complete and submitted to the NWB, the NIRB cannot provide further guidance regarding the extent to which the proposed project components and activities would be exempt from the requirement for further screening. However, in the interim please feel free to contact Amanda Hanson, NIRB's Director of Technical Services at (867) 983-4615 or via email at ahanson@nirb.ca with any general questions you may have about the NIRB's screening process.

Sincerely,

A handwritten signature in black ink that reads "Ryan Barry". The signature is fluid and cursive, with a long horizontal stroke extending to the right.

Ryan Barry
Executive Director
Nunavut Impact Review Board

cc: Damien Côté, Nunavut Water Board
Phyllis Beaulieu, Nunavut Water Board
Patrick Duxbury, RT Associates Ltd.
Arlene Laudrum, SRK Consulting